OXONIENSIA

Oxoniensia is issued to members of the Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society for a subscription price of £12. Copies of some back numbers are available and Oxoniensia is also accessible in digital format. Please refer to the journal website for further information (www.oxoniensia.org).

Intending contributors to Oxoniensia are asked to submit two copies of their work to the editor, Dr Stephen Mileson, St Edmund Hall, Oxford, OX1 4AR (editor@oahs.org.uk) no later than 1 December each year. The editor will be pleased to advise on preliminary drafts. 'Notes for Contributors' are available on the website.

Published in Oxoniensia 2013, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society
OXFORDSHIRE ARCHITECTURAL AND HISTORICAL SOCIETY

The Society, formed in 1972 by the amalgamation of the Oxford Architectural and Historical Society (founded in 1839) and the Oxfordshire Archaeological Society (founded in 1852), exists to further the study of the archaeology, topography, architecture and history of Oxford and Oxfordshire. In addition to publishing Oxoniensia, it provides a programme of winter lectures in Oxford and organizes excursions to places of architectural, historical and archaeological interest. Through its Listed Buildings Committee and associated Victorian Group, the Society makes representations to public bodies, both on its own behalf and for the Council for British Archaeology, to safeguard historical buildings and monuments. The Society also convenes the Oxford City and County Archaeological Forum, which fosters liaison to discuss and advise on issues concerning archaeology and museums, monitor cases and on occasion make representations on matters of concern.

The Society’s website can be found at www.oahs.org.uk. In 2010 OAHS launched two new initiatives to promote digital access to studying Oxfordshire’s past: past volumes of Oxoniensia are now available online (the last five years only to members) at http://oxoniensia.org.uk and the OAHS online guide to resources and societies for studying Oxfordshire’s past is to be found at http://oxfordshirehistory.modhist.ox.ac.uk.

Subscriptions (£12 individual, £17 family membership) should be sent to the Membership Secretary, Tithe Corner, 67 Hill Crescent, Finstock, Chipping Norton, OX7 3BT, who will be pleased to supply further information about the Society.

THE GREENING LAMBORN TRUST

The Greening Lamborn Trust’s objective is to promote public interest in the history, architecture, old photographs and heraldry of Oxford and its neighbourhood by supporting publications and other media that create access to them. It supports scholarly works and smaller publications of local interest. The Trustees make grants, and occasionally loans, to help with publication costs and expenditure on the display to the public of historic artefacts in local museums and industrial heritage sites. Whilst the Trustees cannot support research costs, they can help with the expense of publishing the research when the publication will be available for general purchase. Sometimes the Trustees will meet the cost of including them, and they can help with the expense of publishing the research when the publication will be available for general purchase. Sometimes the Trustees will meet the cost of including additional illustrations, historic photographs etc. which would otherwise be omitted. Further information can be obtained from clerk.greeninglamborn@hmg-law.co.uk.

OXFORDSHIRE LOCAL HISTORY ASSOCIATION

The Association was founded in 1980 to further the study of local history in the County, and in particular to promote links between amateur local historians and academic and professional bodies involved in local history. The Association organizes twice-yearly study days and publishes a regular newsletter and a journal, Oxfordshire Local History. Further details at: www.olha.org.uk

Enquiries about the Association should be addressed to the Hon. Treasurer and Membership Secretary, Liz Woolley, 138 Marlborough Road, Oxford, OX1 4LS (membership@olha.org.uk).

OXFORDSHIRE RECORD SOCIETY

The Oxfordshire Record Society publish transcripts, abstracts and lists of the primary sources for the history of Oxfordshire and work to stimulate interest in archives relating to the county. The annual subscription, currently only £12, supports the Society’s work and entitles members to receive each volume published and a free visit to an historical site at each AGM.

Recent volumes issued by the Society include: An Historical Atlas of Oxfordshire, ed. K. Tiller and G. Darkes. Oxfordshire Friendly Societies, 1750–1918, ed. Shaun Morley. Applications for membership should be sent to Mr Shaun Morley, Tithe Corner, 67 Hill Crescent, Finstock, Chipping Norton, OX7 3BT (oxfordshirerecordsociety@gmail.com). New members receive a volume of their choice from those still in print. Further information can be obtained on the Society’s website: www.oxfordshire-record-society.org.uk.

OXFORD HISTORICAL SOCIETY

Founded in 1884, the Society publishes editions of historical records relating to the City, University, and Colleges of Oxford. To date over 140 volumes have been issued, of which almost 100 are still in print (available to non-subscribers from Boydell & Brewer Ltd: http://www.boydellandbrewer.com). Works published by the Society include Cordeaux and Merry’s bibliographies of the City of Oxford (1976), Oxfordshire (1950), and a supplementary volume on Oxfordshire (1981). The Society’s latest publication is Oxford City Apprentices, 1513–1602, ed. by Alan Crossley (2012). Enquiries about subscription to the Society’s publications should be addressed to: Dr E.M.P. Wells, 24 Tree Lane, Iffley, Oxford, OX4 4EY (elizabeth.wells@bodleian.ox.ac.uk). Subscribers may purchase previous publications at reduced prices.

BANBURY HISTORICAL SOCIETY

The Society publishes volumes of records relating to Banbury and its neighbourhood, including parts of Northamptonshire and Warwickshire as well as Oxfordshire. Thirty volumes have been published to date. These include all pre-General Registration Banbury Parish Registers, 1558–1838, now mostly out of print, but available on microfiche from Oxfordshire Family History Society, c/o Oxfordshire Studies, Central Library, Westgate, Oxford OX1 1DJ.


Banbury Past through Artists’ Eyes, S. Townsend and J. Gibson

In preparation:


The Society’s magazine, Cake and Cockhorse, is issued to members three times a year. Those from 1959 to 2003 are available to buy on a CD-ROM or free online at www.banburyhistory.org.

Subscriptions (£13) are payable to the Hon. Secretary, c/o Banbury Museum, Spiceball Park Road, Banbury, OX16 2PQ.
Contents

Officers and Committee of the Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society vii
Cover Illustrations viii
List of Abbreviations ix
List of Contributors x

ARTICLES
Prehistoric Oxford (The Tom Hassall Lecture for 2012) 1
GEORGE LAMBRICK

The Origins of Wessex Pilot Project 49
HELENA HAMEROW, CHRIS FERGUSON and JOHN NAYLOR

Beakhead Decoration on Romanesque Arches in the Upper Thames Valley 71
JANET NEWSON

New Light on the Abingdon Monks’ Map 87
MANFRED BROD

The Burford School of Masons 99
MELODY MOBUS

The Building Stones of Oxfordshire Villages 115
W.T. HORSFIELD, D.M. DANE, L. DUNLOP, W. FULLER and R. MARCHANT

Sir Gilbert Scott’s Restoration of Christ Church Cathedral 127
E.G.W. BILL edited by PETER HOWELL

The Belfry at Christ Church 157
E.G.W. BILL edited by MICHAEL HALL

REPORTS
Anglo-Saxon and Prehistoric Remains at Oxford Academy, Littlemore, Oxford: Excavations in 2009 175
ANDREW MUDD, MARK BRETT and MARY ALEXANDER

Evidence for a Stephanic Siege Castle at the Lister Wilder Site, The Street, Crowmarsh Gifford 189
GREG LABAN

NOTES
Archaeological Work in Oxford, 2012 213
DAVID RADFORD

Archaeological Work in Oxfordshire, 2012 217
HUGH CODDINGTON, RICHARD ORAM and SUSAN LISK

The Portable Antiquities Scheme in Oxfordshire, 2012 221
ANNI BYARD

Lost and Found: A Flint Dagger from the River Thames at Henley 225
CATE FRIEMAN

An Alternative Interpretation of the Finds from the ‘Boundary Ditch’ of Shakenoak Roman Villa 227
JOHN HUNT†

Published in Oxoniensia 2013, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society
REVIEWS


Christopher Dyer 233

Nat Alcock and Dan Miles, The Medieval Peasant House in Midland England

David Clark 234

Christopher Dyer, A Country Merchant, 1495–1520: Trading and Farming at the End of the Middle Ages

R.B. Peberdy 236

Alan Crossley, Oxford City Apprentices, 1513–1602

Christine Jackson 238

Helen Moore and Julian Reid (eds.), Manifold Greatness: The Making of the King James Bible

R.B. Peberdy 239

Jeremy Gibson (ed.) and Gwyn de Jong (trans.), Oxfordshire Contributors to the Free and Voluntary Present to King Charles II, 1661; Jeremy Gibson (ed.), Politics and Loyalty in Post-Revolution Oxfordshire: The ‘1690’ County Parliamentary Poll; The Association Oath Rolls, 1695–6

Adrienne Rosen 240

William Marshall, Church Life in Hereford and Oxford 1660–1760: A Study of Two Sees

R.B. Peberdy 241


Barrie Trinder 243

Shaun Morley (ed.), Oxfordshire Friendly Societies, 1750–1918

K.D.M. Snell 244

Christopher Sladen, Oxfordshire Colony: Turners Court Farm School, Wallingford, 1911–1991

Pamela Horn† 245

S.J.D. Green and Peregrine Horden (eds.), All Souls and the Wider World: Statesmen, Scholars, and Adventurers, c.1850–1950

J.M. Lee 246

Index 249
OFFICERS AND COMMITTEE 2013

PRESIDENT
C. DAY, M.A., F.S.A.

VICE-PRESIDENTS
T.H. WILSON, M.A., M.PHIL., F.S.A.
J.R.L. HIGHFIELD, M.A., D.PHIL., F.S.A.
MISS G.M. BRIGGS, M.A.

COMMITTEE
Honorary Secretary J. HIND
Honorary Treasurer D.R. CLARK
Editor S.A. MILESON (St Edmund Hall, Oxford, OX1 4AR)
Membership Secretary S. MORLEY (Tithe Corner, 67 Hill Crescent, Finstock, Chipping Norton, OX7 3BT)
Honorary Auditor J.A. HUDSON
Honorary Librarian J. MUNBY
Honorary Reviews Editor R.B. PEBERDY (38 Randolph Street, Oxford, OX4 1XZ)
Oxford City and County Archaeological Forum G.H. LAMBRICK (Chairman) R. AINSLE (Hon. Secretary)
Sub-Committee for Listed Buildings D.R. CLARK (Chairman) E. WOOLLEY (Hon. Secretary)
Webmaster T. DODD
Ordinary Members A. LANG
A REPRESENTATIVE OF THE OXFORD UNIVERSITY ARCHAEOLOGICAL SOCIETY
Cover Illustrations

*Oxfordshire building stones: pp. 120–1*